
 

 

 

Merton Council 

Sustainable Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel  
 
Date: 11 June 2015 

Time: 7.15 pm 

Venue: Merton Civic Centre 

AGENDA 

Page Number 

 

1  Declarations of Interest   

2  Apologies for absence   

3  Minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2015  1 - 6 

4  Matters arising   

5  Circle Housing Merton Priory - Verbal Update   

6  Morden Leisure Centre - Verbal Update   

7  Departmental Priorities for the next 4 years - 
Presentation  

 

8  Agreeing the Work Programme 2015/16  7 - 36 

9  Performance Monitoring   

 

 

 

 

 

 

This is a public meeting – members of the public are very welcome to attend. 
The meeting room will be open to members of the public from 7.00 p.m. 

 
For more information about the work of this and other overview and scrutiny panels, 
please telephone 020 8545 4035 or e-mail scrutiny@merton.gov.uk. Alternatively, 
visit www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny 
 
Press enquiries: press@merton.gov.uk or telephone 020 8545 3483 or 4093 
 
Email alerts: Get notified when agendas are published 
www.merton.gov.uk/council/committee.htm?view=emailer 
 



 

 

Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel Membership 
 
Councillors: 
Russell Makin 
Stan Anderson 
Ross Garrod 
Abigail Jones (Chair) 
John Sargeant 
Imran Uddin 
David Dean (Vice-Chair) 
Janice Howard 
Substitute Members: 
Edward Foley 
Daniel Holden 
Abdul Latif 
Laxmi Attawar 
Jeff Hanna 

Note on declarations of interest 

Members are advised to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be considered at the 
meeting.  If a pecuniary interest is declared they should withdraw from the meeting room during the whole of 
the consideration of that mater and must not participate in any vote on that matter.  If  members consider 
they should not participate because of a non-pecuniary interest which may give rise to a perception of bias, 
they should declare this, .withdraw and not participate in consideration of the item.  For further advice please 
speak with the Assistant Director of Corporate Governance. 

What is Overview and Scrutiny? 
Overview and Scrutiny describes the way Merton’s scrutiny councillors hold the Council’s 
Executive (the Cabinet) to account to make sure that they take the right decisions for the Borough. 
Scrutiny panels also carry out reviews of Council services or issues to identify ways the Council 
can improve or develop new policy to meet the needs of local people.  From May 2008, the 
Overview & Scrutiny Commission and Panels have been restructured and the Panels renamed to 
reflect the Local Area Agreement strategic themes. 
 
Scrutiny’s work falls into four broad areas: 
 

⇒ Call-in: If three (non-executive) councillors feel that a decision made by the Cabinet is 
inappropriate they can ‘call the decision in’ after it has been made to prevent the decision 
taking immediate effect. They can then interview the Cabinet Member or Council Officers and 
make recommendations to the decision-maker suggesting improvements. 

⇒ Policy Reviews: The panels carry out detailed, evidence-based assessments of Council 
services or issues that affect the lives of local people. At the end of the review the panels issue 
a report setting out their findings and recommendations for improvement and present it to 
Cabinet and other partner agencies. During the reviews, panels will gather information, 
evidence and opinions from Council officers, external bodies and organisations and members 
of the public to help them understand the key issues relating to the review topic. 

⇒ One-Off Reviews: Panels often want to have a quick, one-off review of a topic and will ask 
Council officers to come and speak to them about a particular service or issue before making 
recommendations to the Cabinet.  

⇒ Scrutiny of Council Documents: Panels also examine key Council documents, such as the 
budget, the Business Plan and the Best Value Performance Plan. 

 
Scrutiny panels need the help of local people, partners and community groups to make sure that 
Merton delivers effective services. If you think there is something that scrutiny should look at, or 
have views on current reviews being carried out by scrutiny, let us know.  
 
For more information, please contact the Scrutiny Team on 020 8545 4035 or by e-mail on 
scrutiny@merton.gov.uk. Alternatively, visit www.merton.gov.uk/scrutiny 



All minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the committee/panel.  To find out the date of the next 
meeting please check the calendar of events at your local library or online at www.merton.gov.uk/committee. 

 

1 

SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL 
18 MARCH 2015 

(19.15 – 20:45) 

PRESENT Councillor Russell Makin (in the Chair), 
Councillor Stan Anderson, Councillor David Dean, 
Councillor Ross Garrod, Councillor Abigail Jones, Councillor 
Imran Uddin , Councillor John Sargeant, Councillor Janice 
Howard,  Councillor Tobin Byers, Councillor David Chung, 
Councillor Daniel Holden, Councillor Abdul Latif, Councillor 
Susanne Grocott, Councillor Judy Saunders, Councillor 
Najeeb Latif.  

 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Chris Lee (Director of Environment and Regeneration), James 
McGinlay (Head of Sustainable Communities), Paul Walshe 
(Parking Services Manager), John Hill (Head of Public 
Protection), Mario Lecordier (Traffic and Highways Services 
Manager), Steve Shaw (Service Delivery Manager), Rebecca 
Redman (Scrutiny Officer) 

 
1.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
None. 
 

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
None. 

 
3.  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 25 FEBRUARY 2015   

Panel agreed the Minutes as a true record of the meeting. 
 
4.  MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES  

 
The Panel agreed to consider Item 6 first and re-order the agenda to the 
following: 
 
Item 6 – Call In – Tariff changes to the on street pay and display parking 
machines 
Item 5 - Street Lighting – Report for Information 
Item 7 - Performance Reporting 
Item 8 – Topic Suggestions 2015/16 
Item 9 – Housing Supply Task Group – Verbal Update 
 

5.  CALL IN – TARIFF CHANGES TO THE ON STREET PAY AND DISPLAY 
PARKING MACHINES 
 
Panel considered the call in of the delegated officer decision taken on the tariff 
changes to on street pay and display parking machines on 18 February 2015. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



2 

The cost to implement these changes would be £40,000 and take 6-8 weeks 
to implement. Susanne Grocott outlined the reasons for the call in.  These 
were: 
 

• Higher costs for residents; 

• Alternatives presented but not given any evidence to support this 
choice and the final tariffs determined; 

• The financial implications of updating all machines over 3 years; 

• Lack of consideration of impact on residents; 
• 20 minutes free parking should be borough wide; and 
• Increments are not clear.  

 
Councillor Najeeb Latif who spoke on behalf of Wimbledon Village Business 
Association discussed his concerns regarding the decision taken on parking 
tariffs and the impact on local, smaller businesses. In particular, how new 
charges might impact on footfall in smaller shops in Wimbledon Village. He 
added that local businesses rely on having a fair parking system and tariff to 
enable shoppers to come to the area. The WVBA would like an extension to 
the hours of parking allowed, a clearer and standard parking tariff borough 
wide and cashless parking payment systems to be implemented sooner. 
 
Councillor Judy Saunders explained that cashless parking systems had been 
introduced in certain car parks and would be rolled out further in the year 
ahead. Furthermore, 20 minutes of free parking would be rolled out further in 
future. The new tariff is linear and therefore an improved system as customers 
simply pay for the time they park. There has been no significant increase in 
parking charges since 2011 and the agreed income that will be generated 
under this new structure has been agreed by full council. 
 
Chris Lee added that this decision was taken further to the town centre parking 
survey and the outcomes. The issues that emerged from the scrutiny review of 
parking have been addressed through this new structure. However a reduction 
in parking charges was not recommended or agreed. The decision taken aims 
to increase parking charges, in line with the decision of Council ,whilst 
simplifying a complex tariff structure. The new tariffs are fair and reasonable 
charges for parking. Lower charges do not necessarily mean that it is better for 
businesses. 20 minutes free parking is usually sufficient as it helps to increase 
turnover, which in turn helps businesses. 
 
Chris Lee explained that across the range of pay and display sites, each with a 
different turnover, the council generates less income per annum over the next 
3 years than the 10% increase that was agreed. The council have also been 
working with WVBA to increase parking and the number of bays available. The 
new tariff can also be implemented alongside the cashless parking charges 
this year.  
 

Page 2



3 

Councillor David Dean asked when the decision had been taken to raise 
prices. Chris Lee confirmed that this was a full council decision taken as part 
of budget setting on 5th March 2014. 
 
Councillor John Sargeant queried the additional pricing within the report that 
was not available when the Panel had undertaken pre decision scrutiny of the 
town centre parking survey outcomes and action plan.  
 
Councillor Abigail Jones asked how the tariff compared with the cost of parking 
in town centre car parks. Paul Walshe explained that town centre car parks are 
cheaper than Wimbledon town centre on street charges.  
 
Councillor Abdul Latif asked how a decision was taken that 20 minutes free 
parking was sufficient. Councillor Judy Saunders explained that the decision 
was agreed at scrutiny and by all political groups. 
 
Councillor David Dean stated that the Panel needed some assurance that 20 
minutes free parking is implemented across the borough.  
 
Chris Lee explained that he doesn’t have the authority to roll out 20 minutes of 
free parking across the whole borough, only at agreed neighbourhood 
shopping parades.  
 
Councillor John Sargeant added that the Panel needed to have sight of the 
proposals to roll out 20 minutes of free parking ahead of the decision being 
taken. 
 
RESOLVED: Panel agreed that the decision should go ahead and be 
implemented as agreed.  

 
6.       STREET LIGHTING 

 
Steve Shew introduced the report explaining that the council’s street lighting 
contract expired in September 2016 and sought the Panels view on 
procurement of this contract. Councillor Russell Makin asked what street 
lighting reductions had ben agreed. Steve Shaw explained that there would be 
some reductions but that this would be done so in a safe fashion to reduce the 
risk of crime and accidents. 
 
Councillor Russell Makin asked what consultation had taken place with the 
police and CCTV on this. Steve Shew explained that the reductions won’t 
affect CCTV. The reduction in lighting would not make any difference. 
Councillor Stan Anderson asked in which areas this would apply. Steve Shew 
explained that this would be borough wide.  
 
Councillor Ross Garrod asked when all lights that are not energy efficient 
would be replaced. Steve Shew explained that the council do not intend to 
bring in certain types of lighting and that some are already energy efficient. All 
lights could take 14 years to replace to LED lights and the council would need 

Page 3



4 

to undertake retrofitting. The council are looking to increase the capital to 
convert existing steel columns and replace just the lanterns. This is more cost 
efficient. 
 
Councillor Imran Uddin asked if solar panel lighting had been considered. 
Steve Shew explained that a joint procurement process with other boroughs 
has been investigated to determine if there were options for shared services 
with other councils to achieve greater savings. He added that some of the 
lights are solar powered but not entirely efficient. This may become an option 
in the future.  
 
Steve Shew explained that the council could look to jointly procure the contract 
with Sutton and are looking at options and could possibly tender together. This 
would need to go through the political process. The existing contracts of 
respective boroughs also end at different times. Outside consultants will be 
engaged on this to look at how costs might be shared.  
 
Steve Shew explained that the figures listed in the report do not reflect 
maintenance and that savings could be realised once work has been done on 
energy efficiency. ML – 4000 columns could be converted to LED but at a cost 
of £2 million which would therefore require significant capital investment.  The 
cost of retrofit would be £400,000 and payback on this would be expected over 
2-3 years. The £2 million investment would see a return over a longer payback 
period of 15 years. There would be savings in both maintenance costs and in 
energy costs.  
 
James McGinlay explained that these figures are based on projections and the 
budget line would be adjusted in subsequent years.  
 
Councillor David Dean questioned how much dimming lights would save. 
Steve Shaw explained that dimming lights [ adaptive lighting  ] makes quite a 
significant saving. Adaptive lighting operates at various times of the night.  
 
James McGinlay explained that this decision would be taken through the 
scrutiny process in due course. 
 
RESOLVED: Panel noted the report and agreed to receive the street lighting 
contract when available for pre decision scrutiny.  

 
   
7.       PERFORMANCE REPORTING 
 

Chris Lee explained that the Panel had received the latest performance report 
at their last meeting in February 2015 and that there was no new updated 
performance data to share with the Panel at this time. 

 
RESOLVED: Panel noted the update.  
 

8.  TOPIC SUGGESTIONS 

Page 4



5 

 
The Panel considered any topics that they wished to put forward for 
consideration for their 2015/16 work programme. Councillor David Dean 
proposed that the Panel consider parks and maintenance and that they keep 
an overview of the performance of Circle Housing Merton Priory (CHMP). He 
also suggested that the Panel consider solar energy and how council stock 
could be made more energy efficient. Councillor Abdul Latif proposed that the 
Panel look at what the council could do to manage the accommodation of 
traveller communities. Councillor John Sargeant suggested that the Panel 
consider green spaces, the delivery of adult education and building control and 
asked that the Panel receive more detailed information earlier in the change 
process. Councillor Russell Makin suggested that the Panel receive a report 
on the council’s property portfolio.   
  
RESOLVED:  Panel noted that the work programme would be set at its first 
meeting in June 2015. 
 

9.  HOUSING SUPPLY SCRUTINY TASK GROUP – VERBAL UPDATE 
 
Councillor Ross Garrod provided an update to the Panel on progress with the 
Housing Supply Scrutiny Task Group. He explained that the task group have 
met with a range of stakeholders to date, including Housing Associations 
across London. Councillor Ross Garrod explained that the review had been 
extended to allow for the election period and for further evidence to be 
gathered and site visits to be held with the GLA, NHS and other Local 
Authorities that are exemplars of good practice. The task group will produce its 
final report for the Panels consideration at its September 2015 meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: Panel noted the update.  

  
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Committee:  Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

Date:  11
th
 June 2015 

Agenda item:   

Wards:  All  

Subject:  Agreeing the Work Programme 2015/16 

Lead officer:  Rebecca Redman, Scrutiny Officer 

Lead member:  Cllr Abigail Jones, Chair of Sustainable Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel 

Contact officer:  Rebecca Redman: Rebecca.redman@merton.gov.uk 020 8545 4035 

Recommendations:  

That Members of the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel:  

i) Consider their work programme for the 2015/16 municipal year, and agree 
issues and items for inclusion; 

ii) Consider the methods by which the Panel would like to scrutinise the 
issues/items agreed; 

iii) Identify a Member to lead on performance monitoring on behalf of the Panel;  

iv) Identify a Member to lead on budget scrutiny on behalf of the Panel; 

v) Agree on an issue for scrutiny by a task group and appoint members to the 
Task Group; and 

vi) Consider the appointment of co-opted members for the 2015/16 municipal 
year, to sit on the Panel and/or on the Task Group 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT AND EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to support and advise Members to determine their work 
programme for the 2015/16 municipal year. 

1.2 This report sets out the following information to assist Members in this process: 

a) The principles of effective scrutiny and the criteria against which work programme 
items should be considered; 

b) The roles and responsibilities of the Sustainable Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel; 

c) The findings of the consultation programme undertaken with Members, senior 
management, voluntary and community sector organisations, partner 
organisations and Merton residents; 

d) A summary of the discussion by councillors and co-opted members at a topic 
selection workshop held on 19th May 2015; and  

e) Support available to the Overview and Scrutiny Panel to determine, develop and 
deliver its 2015/16 work programme.  

Agenda Item 8

Page 7



 

2. Determining the Overview and Scrutiny Panel Annual Work Programme for 
2015/16 

  

2.1 Members are required to determine their work programme for the 2015/16 municipal 
year to give focus and structure to scrutiny activity to ensure that it effectively and 
efficiently supports and challenges the decision-making processes of the Council, and 
partner organisations, for the benefit of the people of Merton.  

2.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Panels have specific roles relating to budget and 
business plan scrutiny and to performance monitoring that should automatically be 
built into their work programmes. Members are recommended to appoint a 
Performance Monitoring Lead Member and a Business Plan/Budget Scrutiny Lead 
Member on behalf of the Panel.  

2.3 Overview and Scrutiny Panels may choose to scrutinise a range of issues through a 
combination of pre-decision scrutiny items, policy development, performance 
monitoring, information updates and follow up to previous scrutiny work. Any call-in 
work will be programmed into the provisional call-in dates identified in the corporate 
calendar as required.  

2.4 The Overview and Scrutiny Panel has six scheduled meetings over the course of 
2015/16, including the scheduled budget meeting (representing a maximum of 18 
hours of scrutiny per year – assuming 3 hours per meeting). Members will therefore 
need to be selective in their choice of items for the Panel’s work programme. 

 

Principles guiding the development of the scrutiny work programme 

2.5 The following key principles of effective scrutiny should be considered when the 
Panel determines its work programme: 

• Be selective – There is a need to prioritise so that high priority issues are 
scrutinised given the limited number of scheduled meetings and time available. 
Members should consider what can realistically and properly be reviewed at each 
meeting, taking into account the time needed to scrutinise each item and what the 
session is intended to achieve. 

• Add value with scrutiny – Items should have the potential to ‘add value’ to the 
work of the Authority and its partners. If it is not clear what the intended outcomes 
or impact of a review will be then Members should consider if there are issues of a 
higher priority that could be scrutinised instead. 

• Be ambitious – Panels should not shy away from carrying out scrutiny of issues 
that are of local concern, whether or not they are the primary responsibility of the 
council. the Local Government Act 2000 gave local authorities the power to do 
anything to promote economic, social and environmental well being of local 
communities. Subsequent Acts have conferred specific powers to scrutinise health 
services, crime and disorder issues and to hold partner organisations to account. 

• Be flexible – Members are reminded that there needs to be a degree of flexibility 
in their work programme to respond to unforeseen issues/items for 
consideration/comment during the year and accommodate any developmental or 
additional work that falls within the remit of this Panel. For example Members may 
wish to questions officers regarding the declining performance of a service or may 
choose to respond to a Councillor Call for Action request. 

Page 8



 

• Think about the timing – Members should ensure that the scrutiny activity is 
timely and that, where appropriate, their findings and recommendations inform 
wider corporate developments or policy development cycles at a time when they 
can have most impact. Members should seek to avoid duplication of work carried 
out elsewhere.  

Models for carrying out scrutiny work 

2.6 There are a number of means by which the Overview and Scrutiny Panel can deliver 
its work programme. Members should consider which of the following options is most 
appropriate to undertake each of the items they have selected for inclusion in the 
work programme: 

Item on a scheduled meeting 
agenda/ hold an extra 
meeting of the Panel 

� Panel can agree to add an item to the agenda for a 
meeting and call Cabinet Members/ Officers/Partners 
to the meeting to respond to questioning on the 
matter  

� A variation of this model could be a single meeting to 
scrutinise an issue that, although important, does not 
merit setting up a ‘task-and-finish’ group. 

Task Group  � A small group of Members meet outside of the 
scheduled meetings to gather information on the 
subject area, visit other local authorities/sites, and 
speak to service users, expert witnesses and/or 
Officers/Partners. The Task Group can then report 
back to the wider Panel with their findings to endorse 
the submission of their recommendations to 
Cabinet/Council 

� This is the method usually used to carry out policy 
reviews 

Panel asks for a report then 
takes a view on action 

� The Panel may need more information before taking 
a view on whether to carry out a full review so asks 
for a report to give them more details. 

Meeting with service 
officer/partners 

� A Member (or small group of Members) has a 
meeting with service officers/partners to discuss 
concerns or raise queries.  

� If the Member is not satisfied with the outcome or 
believes that the Panel needs to have a more in-
depth review of the matter s/he takes it back to the 
Panel for discussion 

Individual Members doing 
some initial research  

� A member with a specific concern carries out some 
research to gain more information on the matter and 
then brings his/her findings to the attention of the 
panel if s/he still has concerns. 

2.7 Note that, in order to keep agendas to a manageable size, and to focus on items to 
which the Panel can make a direct contribution, the Panel may choose to take some 
“information only” items outside of Panel meetings, for example by email. 

Support available for scrutiny activity 

2.8 The Overview and Scrutiny function has dedicated scrutiny support from the Scrutiny 
Team to: 

• Work with the Chair and Vice-Chair of each Panel to manage the work programme 
and coordinate the agenda, including advising officers and partner organisations 
on information required and guidance for witnesses submitting evidence to a 
scrutiny review;  

Page 9



 

• Provide support for scrutiny Members through briefing papers, background 
material, training and development seminars, etc; 

• Facilitate and manage the work of the task and finish groups, including research, 
arranging site visits, inviting and briefing witnesses and drafting review reports on 
behalf on the Chair; and 

• Promote the scrutiny function across the organisation and externally. 

2.9 The Overview and Scrutiny Panel will need to assess how they can best utilise the 
available support from the Scrutiny Team to deliver their work programme for 
2015/16.  

2.10 The Panel is also invited to comment upon any briefing, training and support that are 
needed to enable Members to undertake their work programme.  Members may also 
wish to undertake visits to local services in order to familiarise themselves with these. 
Such visits should be made with the knowledge of the Chair and will be organised by 
the Scrutiny Team. 

2.11 The Scrutiny Team will take the Overview and Scrutiny Panel’s views on board in 
developing the support that is provided.  

3. Selecting items for the Scrutiny Work Programme 

3.1 Each Overview and Scrutiny Panel sets its own agenda within the scope of its terms 
of reference, with the Overview and Scrutiny Commission taking a coordinating role 
to ensure that any gaps or overlap in the scrutiny work programme are dealt with in a 
joined-up way. 

The Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel has the following remit: -  

• Housing, including housing need, affordable housing and private sector housing; 

• Environmental sustainability, including energy, waste management, parks & open 
spaces and the built environment; 

• Culture, including tourism, museums, arts, sports & leisure; 

• Enterprise and skills, including regeneration, employment, adult education & 
libraries; and 

• Transport 

 

3.1 The Scrutiny Team has undertaken a campaign to gather suggestions for issues to 
scrutinise either as Panel agenda items or task group reviews. Suggestions have 
been received from members of the public, councillors and partner organisations 
including the police, NHS Sutton and Merton and Merton Voluntary Service Council. 
Other issues of public concern have been identified through the Annual Residents 
Survey. Issues that have been raised repeatedly at Community Forums have also 
been included. The Scrutiny Team has consulted departmental management teams in 
order to identify forthcoming issues on which the panel could contribute to the 
policymaking process. 

3.2 A description of all the suggestions received is set out in Appendix 2. 

3.3 The councillors who attended a “topic selection” workshop on 19th May 2015 
discussed these suggestions. 

Page 10



 

3.4 The suggestions were prioritised at the workshop using the criteria listed in Appendix 
3. In particular, participants sought to identify issues that related to the Council’s 
strategic priorities or where there was underperformance; issues of public interest or 
concern and issues where scrutiny could make a difference. 

3.5 A note of the workshop discussion relating to the remit of this Panel is set out in 
Appendix 4. 

3.6 Appendix 1 contains a draft work programme that has been drawn up, taking the 
workshop discussion into account, for the consideration of the Panel. The Panel is 
requested to discuss this draft and agree any changes that it wishes to make. 

3.7 The Panel may also wish to select items for scrutiny from the presentations made by 
Directors and Cabinet Members (at the Panel’s meeting on 11 June 2015) or based 
on other public priorities of which Members are aware through their ward work. 

3.8 Items on the Cabinet’s forward plan that relate to the remit of this Panel are listed in 
Appendix 5.   The Panel may wish to include one or more of these issues in its work 
programme. 

4. Task group reviews 

4.1 The Panel is invited to select an issue for in-depth scrutiny and establish a task 
group. 

5. Co-option to the Panel membership 

5.1 Scrutiny Panels can consider whether to appoint non-statutory (non-voting) co-optees 
to the membership, in order to add to the specific knowledge, expertise and 
understanding of key issues to aid the scrutiny function.  Panels may also wish to 
consider whether it may be helpful to co-opt people from “seldom heard” groups. 

6. Public involvement 

6.1 Scrutiny provides extensive opportunities for community involvement and democratic 
accountability. Engagement with service users and with the general public can help to 
improve the quality, legitimacy and long-term viability of recommendations made by 
the Panel. 

6.2 Service users and the public bring different perspectives, experiences and solutions 
to scrutiny, particularly if “seldom heard” groups such as young people, disabled 
people, people from black and minority ethnic communities and people from lesbian 
gay bisexual and transgender communities are included. 

6.3 This engagement will help the Panel to understand the service user’s perspective on 
individual services and on co-ordination between services. Views can be heard 
directly through written or oral evidence or heard indirectly through making use of 
existing sources of information, for example from surveys. From time to time the 
Panel/Task Group may wish to carry out engagement activities of its own, by holding 
discussion groups or sending questionnaires on particular issues of interest. 

6.4 Much can be learnt from best practice already developed in Merton and elsewhere. 
The Scrutiny Team will be able to help the Panel to identify the range of stakeholders 
from which it may wish to seek views and the best way to engage with particular 
groups within the community. 

Page 11



 

7. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

7.1 A number of issues highlighted in this report recommend that Panel members take 
into account certain considerations when setting their work programme for 2015/16. 
Overview and Scrutiny Panels are free to determine their work programme as they 
see fit. Members may therefore choose to identify a work programme that does not 
take into account these considerations. This is not advised as ignoring the issues 
raised would either conflict with good practice and/or principles endorsed in the 
Review of Scrutiny, or could mean that adequate support would not be available to 
carry out the work identified for the work programme. 

7.2 A range of suggestions from the public, partner organisations, officers and Members 
for inclusion in the scrutiny work programme are set out in the appendices, together 
with a suggested approach to determining which to include in the work programme. 
Members may choose to respond differently. However, in doing so, Members should 
be clear about expected outcomes, how realistic expectations are and the impact of 
their decision on their wider work programme and support time. Members are also 
free to incorporate into their work programme any other issues they think should be 
subject to scrutiny over the course of the year, with the same considerations in mind. 

8. CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN OR PROPOSED 

8.1 To assist Members to identify priorities for inclusion in the Panel’s scrutiny work 
programme, the Scrutiny Team has undertaken a campaign to gather suggestions for 
possible scrutiny reviews from a number of sources: 

a. Members of the public have been approached using the following tools: articles in 
the local press, My Merton and Merton Together, request for suggestions from all 
councillors and co-opted members, letter to partner organisations and to range of 
local voluntary and community organisations, including those involved in the Inter-
Faith Forum and members of the Lesbian Gay and Transgender Forum; 

b. Councillors have put forward suggestions by raising issues in scrutiny meetings, 
via the Overview and Scrutiny Member Survey 2015, and by contacting the 
Scrutiny Team directly; and  

c. Officers have been consulted via discussion at departmental management team 
meetings. 

9. FINANCIAL, RESOURCE AND PROPERTY IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 There are none specific to this report.  Scrutiny work involves consideration of the 
financial, resource and property issues relating to the topic being scrutinised. 
Furthermore, scrutiny work will also need to assess the implications of any 
recommendations made to Cabinet, including specific financial, resource and property 
implications. 

10. LEGAL AND STATUTORY IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 Overview and scrutiny bodies operate within the provisions set out in the Local 
Government Act 2000, the Health and Social Care Act 2001 and the Local 
Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.  

10.2 Scrutiny work involves consideration of the legal and statutory issues relating to the 
topic being scrutinised. Furthermore, scrutiny work will also need to assess the 
implications of any recommendations made to Cabinet, including specific legal and 
statutory implications. 

Page 12



 

11. HUMAN RIGHTS, EQUALITIES AND COMMUNITY COHESION IMPLICATIONS 

11.1 It is a fundamental aim of the scrutiny process to ensure that there is full and equal 
access to the democratic process through public involvement and engagement. The 
reviews will involve work to consult local residents, community and voluntary sector 
groups, businesses, hard to reach groups, partner organisations etc and the views 
gathered will be fed into the review. 

11.2 Scrutiny work involves consideration of the human rights, equalities and community 
cohesion issues relating to the topic being scrutinised. Furthermore, scrutiny work will 
also need to assess the implications of any recommendations made to Cabinet, 
including specific human rights, equalities and community cohesion implications. 

12. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS 

12.1 In line with the requirements of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and the Police and 
Justice Act 2006, all Council departments must have regard to the impact of services 
on crime, including anti-social behaviour and drugs.  Scrutiny review reports will 
therefore highlight any implications arising from the reviews relating to crime and 
disorder as necessary.     

13. RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

13.1 There are none specific to this report.  Scrutiny work involves consideration of the risk 
management and health and safety issues relating to the topic being scrutinised. 
Furthermore, scrutiny work will also need to assess the implications of any 
recommendations made to Cabinet, including specific risk management and health 
and safety implications. 

14. APPENDICES – THE FOLLOWING DOCUMENTS ARE TO BE PUBLISHED WITH 
THIS REPORT AND FORM PART OF THE REPORT 

14.1 Appendix I – Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel draft work 
programme 2015/16 

14.2 Appendix 2 – Summary of topics relating to this Overview & Scrutiny Panel’s remit 
suggested for inclusion in the scrutiny work programme  

14.3 Appendix 3 – Selecting a Scrutiny Topic – criteria used at the workshop on                 
19th May 2015 

14.4 Appendix 4 – Notes from discussion of topics relating to the remit of the Sustainable 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel, Scrutiny Topic Selection Workshop         
19th May 2015 

14.5 Appendix 5 – Extract from Forward Plan 

15. BACKGROUND PAPERS  

15.1 None  

Page 13



 

Appendix 1 

One item may be selected for a full task group review.  The topic (suggested at the topic 
selection evening on 19th May 2015) identified that may be suitable for a task group 
review was: 

• Creating a tourism industry in Merton 

 

Draft Work Programme for Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel meetings 

Meeting date – 11th June 2015 

Item/Issue 

Priorities for 2014/15 – Cabinet Member/Director presentation 

Agreeing the 2014/15 work programme - Report 

Verbal Update – Morden Leisure Centre 

Presentation – Circle Housing Merton Priory (Performance Monitoring) 

Performance Reporting 

 

Meeting date – 2nd September 2015 

Item/Issue 

Creating a Tourist Industry in Merton – Briefing Report (possible task group review) 

Draft Final Report – Housing Supply Task Group 

Commercial Services and opportunities to maximise resources – Briefing Report 

Public Toilets – Briefing Report 

Climate Change and Green Deal Task Group – Performance Monitoring 

Adult Skills and Employability Task Group - Performance Monitoring 

Performance Reporting(including focus on waste management and street scene) 

Work Programme 2015/16 

 

Meeting date – November 2015 

Item/Issue 

Pre decision - Scrutiny of the budget and business plan 

Merton Adult Education – pre decision scrutiny (dates to be determined) 

Shared Services – Briefing Report 

results of the wheelie bin pilot - pre-decision scrutiny (dates to be determined)  

Executive Response and Action Plan – Housing Supply Task Group 

Verbal Update – Morden Leisure Centre 

Performance Reporting 

Work Programme 2015/16 

 

Meeting date - January 2016 

Item/Issue 

Pre decision - Scrutiny of the budget and business plan 

Executive   

Page 14



 

Performance Reporting 

Work Programme 2015/16 

 

Meeting date - February 2016 

Item/Issue 

Town Centre Regeneration – Performance Monitoring 

Cycle Routes – Briefing Report 

Phase C regeneration programme (including parks, grounds, maintenance and waste) 

Performance Reporting 

Work Programme 2015/16 

 

Meeting date - March 2016 

Item/Issue 

Highways maintenance – contract renewal (pre decision) 

Performance Reporting 

Work Programme Planning 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 

Page 15



 

Description of topic suggestions received in relation to the remit of the Sustainable 
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

The following topics were suggested by residents, Members and officers, for consideration by 

the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny Panel, for their 2015/16 work programme. 

 

Complaints relating to the remit of this Panel in 2013/14: 

With regard to the council’s complaints process, in 2013/14 the council received 473 complaints 

relating to the Environment and Regeneration Dept. which related to policy regarding planning, 

enforcement, tree cutting and CCTV and waste management and parking.  The Community and 

Housing Department received 94 complaints that related to service delivery and policy.  

 

1. Topic: Highways maintenance – contract renewal 

 
Who suggested the topic? 

Environment and Regeneration DMT suggested that the Panel may wish to undertake pre 

decision scrutiny on the renewal of the highways maintenance contract. Residents also 

submitted topic suggestions that related to the quality of roads and pavements and 

maintenance of highways in specific areas of the borough. 

 

Summary of the issue 

The council aim to maintain all footpaths and roads in a safe condition, and ensure they make a 

positive and attractive contribution to the appearance of the borough. The Panel receives 

regular performance information regarding the maintenance of highways as part of their 

2014/15 work programme. 

 

How could scrutiny look at it? 

Members may wish to undertake pre decision scrutiny of the renewal of the highways 
maintenance contract at the appropriate time (pre decision scrutiny). 
  
2. Topic: Morden Leisure Centre 

 
Who suggested the topic? 

Members of the Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel asked to be kept informed and 

engaged at pre decision stages of the project to develop the new Morden Leisure Centre and 

restore the former site of the centre.  

 

Summary of the issue 

The Panel undertook pre decision scrutiny and heard a call in on the proposals for the 
development of Morden Leisure Centre, and use of the site of the former centre, as part of its 
2014/15 work programme.  
 
How could scrutiny look at it? 

Page 16



 

Members asked to be engaged at the appropriate intervals in the programme of redevelopment 

of the leisure centre and former site to enable them to undertake pre decision scrutiny and 

maintain an overview of the project.  

 
3. Topic: Commercial services and opportunities to maximise resources 

 

Who suggested the topic? 

This topic was proposed by E&R DMT.  

 

Summary of the issue 

The Panel may wish to seek advice from the Director of Environment and Regeneration on 

opportunities for scrutiny to add value.  

 

How could scrutiny look at it? 

The Panel could appoint a task group to review the opportunities for the council to deliver and 

develop commercial services that would enable the authority to maximise resources and 

generate an income.  

 

4. Topic: Housing supply 

 

Who suggested the topic? 

Residents suggested that the lack of affordable housing in the borough should be investigated 

by the Panel. Members of the Wimbledon Society also proposed that scrutiny look at how 

effective the process of establishing viability of developments to generate the greatest 

percentage of affordable housing. 

Summary of the issue 

Lack of affordable housing is a concern for 21% of residents within the Annual Residents 

Survey 2014. There is also significant press coverage of the housing crisis which has 

highlighted the need to make provision to allow new homes to be built, and existing homes to be 

refurbished. In recognition of this, the Panel appointed a Task Group as part of its 2014/15 work 

programme, to investigate housing supply in the borough. The review has the following terms of 

reference: 

 

• To understand housing market characteristics and the level of housing need in Merton; 

• National and local policy context surrounding the provision of affordable housing; 

• Data on housing need in Merton; 

• The role of the local authority and partners (i.e. Registered Providers, private landlords 

and private developers) in ensuring good quality housing; 

• An overview of what affordable housing is being built in Merton; 

 

• To review the councils existing housing strategy with a view to strengthening/developing 

this policy in light of the reviews findings; 

 

• To determine how the council might support and encourage the production of new 

affordable homes in Merton and what land is available for development; and 

Page 17



 

 

• To determine what good practice exists elsewhere that might be utilised in responding to 

the demand for affordable housing 

 

The Task Group have explored a number of models for housing provision and have met with 

housing associations, other local authorities, the GLA and NHS to enable them to determine 

feasible models for Merton to meet housing need. The Task Group is due to report to the Panel 

and Cabinet in September 2015.   

 

How could scrutiny look at it? 

It is suggested that the Panel receive and then monitor delivery of the agreed recommendations 

resulting from the task group review of housing supply (performance monitoring). 

 

That the Panel engage in any pre decision scrutiny of suitable models that may be taken 

forward resulting from the task group review, for example, the Housing Development Company 

model or mixed use sites and use of NHS surplus land, dependent upon Cabinet agreement to 

the recommendations made by the task group (pre decision scrutiny).   

 

5. Topic: Climate Change and the Green Deal Task Group 

Who suggested the topic? 

The Scrutiny Officer proposes that the Panel continue to performance monitor delivery of the 

agreed recommendations resulting from their task group review of Climate Change and the 

Green Deal. 

Summary of the issue: 

The Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel undertook a task group review of Climate Change 

and the Green Deal as part of its 2013/14 work programme and has received updates from the 

department on delivery of the recommendations from the review.  

How scrutiny could look at it? 

It is suggested that the Panel continue to performance monitor delivery of the action plan at six 

monthly intervals until al of the recommendations have been delivered (performance 

monitoring).  

6. Topic:  Merton Adult Education 

 
Who suggested the topic? 
 
A resident proposed that the Panel look at the Merton Adult Education service and how it will be 
delivered in the future.  
 

Summary of the issue: 

The Panel undertook pre decision scrutiny, received private briefings and heard a call in on the 

options for achieving a value fro money adult education service and on the proposed 

commissioning model of delivery.  

 

How scrutiny could look at it? 

Page 18



 

Members may wish to maintain an overview of the effectiveness of a commissioning model of 

delivery and comment, as appropriate, on any proposals for development or change to service 

provision at pre decision stage (pre decision scrutiny). 

 

7. Topic: Monitoring of stock transfer to CHMP and Regeneration Programme 

 

Who suggested the topic? 

Members request that the Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel receive regular updates on 

the success of the housing stock transfer to CHMP and on the regeneration and repairs and 

maintenance programmes every six months. 

 

Summary of the issue 

The ownership of all 9,000 Merton Council homes was transferred to the housing association 

Merton Priory Homes (MPH) in March 2010. The stock transfer to Merton Priory Homes, a 

newly-formed subsidiary of Circle Anglia was based on a vote in favour of the transfer by 53% of 

tenants. The organisation committed to invest £129 million in improvements to their homes to 

2020, with a planned £383 million being invested in the stock over 30 years. It also set up a £1 

million community fund to invest in projects across the borough. 

 

Panel members have considered the benefits that have resulted from the transfer as part of its 

2013/14 and 2014/15 work programmes and delivery against the promises contained within the 

transfer.  

In addition, the progress and fulfilment of the CHMP promises made at the time of the housing 

stock transfer is regularly monitored by the housing team and presented in a quarterly report to 

Cabinet and via email to the Panel.  

The Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel also receives pre decision reports at appropriate 

intervals on the CHMP Regeneration programme of its three estates.  

How could scrutiny look at it? 

It is suggested that the Panel continue to receive six monthly updates on progress with 

implementation of the commitments within the housing stock transfer document and on 

associated benefits to residents (performance monitoring). 

It is also suggested that the Panel consider future proposals for MPH’s regeneration programme 

and undertake pre decision scrutiny when appropriate to enable them to make any 

recommendations to MPH.  

8. Topic: Shared Services 

 
Who suggested the topic? 

Environment & Regeneration Departmental Management Team (DMT) asked that the Panel 

consider the councils plans for expanding regulatory shared service arrangements. 

 

Summary of the issue 

The Environment and Regeneration Department have expressed a commitment to developing a 

shared regulatory service with Merton, Richmond and Croydon which would cover Licensing, 

Page 19



 

Trading Standards, Environmental Health (Commercial, Environmental Protection), together 

with providing administrative support. There have been a number of areas of risk that have been 

identified which include the potential inability to achieve savings targets. These risks also 

concern the resilience and robustness of the shared service being properly assessed. 

Successful shared services are in operation at Merton which involves working with other 

councils to share resources and make associated efficiency savings. For example, the South 

London Partnership. The South London Partnership encompasses five South London boroughs: 

Croydon, Kingston, Merton, Richmond and Sutton. Its aim is to promote the south London sub-

region, particularly in matters relating to economic development and transport planning.  

 

How could scrutiny look at it? 

It is suggested that the Panel undertake pre decision scrutiny of proposals relating to the 

development of regulatory shared services at appropriate intervals (pre decision). 

9. Topic: Adult Skills and Employability Task Group  

 

Who suggested the topic? 

The Scrutiny Officer proposes that the Panel receive regular progress updates on the 

implementation of the agreed recommendations resulting from the task group review of adult 

skills and employability.   

 

Summary of the issue: 

The Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel established a task group as part of its 2012/13 

work programme to undertake a review of adult skills and employability. The review focused on 

3 key areas: reducing unemployment, attracting inward investment and improving the quality of 

adult education. The Panel has received progress updates on the recommendations agreed by 

Cabinet during its 2014/15 work programme.   

 

How scrutiny could look at this? 

It is suggested that Members add this as a standing six monthly item on their work programme 

to performance monitor implementation of their recommendations resulting from this review. 

 
10. Topic: Public Toilets 

  
Who suggested the topic? 

A topic suggestion was received from a resident regarding the availability of public toilets in 

Merton.  

 

Summary of the issue:  

The council has a community toilet scheme which was launched in 2009. The Sustainable 

Communities Scrutiny Panel considered the scheme as part of their 2009/10 work programme.  

 

The scheme enables the public to use toilets in facilities in the borough such as shops, pubs, 

restaurants etc. where that business has signed up to the scheme. Public toilet buildings that 

the council previously ran were closed due to funding issues some time ago and there are no 

proposals to reinstate them.  

Page 20



 

 

How could scrutiny look at it? 

Members may wish to receive an update on the Community Toilet Scheme (performance 

monitoring).   

 

11. Topic: 20 mph Zones/Limits 

 

Who suggested the topic? 

A resident suggested that the implementation of 20mph zones and limits in Wimbledon would 

be worth investigating by the Panel. In particular, how they are enforced. 

 

Summary of the issue 

A 20mph limit or 20mph zone is a dedicated area where improving safety and maintaining the 

quality of life for local residents takes precedence over the general objective to ease traffic 

movement. Traffic speed within this area is not to exceed 20mph. 

For a 20mph zone, traffic calming features in the form of road humps; speed cushions; road 

closures; one way systems; pedestrian refuge islands and road narrowing’s would have to be 

introduced at the appropriate distance to achieve a legal and self-enforceable zone. A 20mph 

limit does not require any traffic calming features as part of the legal requirements except for the 

introduction of the appropriate signs and road markings which will be located at all the entry 

points into the area. 

Like a number of other London Boroughs, there is a combination of roads with 20 mph limits 

and 20 mph zones in Merton. The Council commissioned an analysis of the effectiveness of the 

current schemes that have been implemented. This analysis has focused on a comparison of 

before and after accident data at each of the individual limits and zones, along with before and 

after traffic flow and vehicle speed data at each of the individual limits and zones.  

 

The Sustainable Communities Panel considered 20 mph zones as part of its 2013/14 and 

2014/15 work programmes and the outcomes of an independent consultant report into the roll 

out and effectiveness of 20 mph zones and limits across London, which made 

recommendations on how Merton might take this forward. In particular, the Panel commented 

on whether 20mph zones and limits should be rolled out in the borough and if a blanket 

approach borough wide 20mph zone was more appropriate.  

 

How could scrutiny look at it? 

 

It is suggested that the Panel undertake a performance monitoring role in this area if they wish 

to do so, on the roll out of 20 mph zones and limits in specific areas across Merton and their 

effectiveness (performance monitoring).   

Page 21



 

 

 

12. Topic: Creation and maintenance of green spaces 

 
Who suggested the topic? 

Environment and regeneration DMT proposed that the Panel undertake pre decision scrutiny of 

the Phase C procurement in relation to parks and grounds maintenance. Residents have also 

suggested that a review of the management of parks and open spaces be undertaken by the 

Panel.  

 

Summary of the issue 

Merton is rich in green spaces, with over 60 public parks.  The council has a number of duties to 

maintain parks and green spaces and a dedicated service for this purpose with a range of 

specialists in arboriculture etc. 

The Panel undertook a review of Parks and Open Spaces as part of its 2009/10 work 

programme. In addition, the Panel undertook a Task Group review of Trees as part of the 

2011/12 work programme.  

The Annual Residents Survey 2014 found that 72% of residents felt that the standards of parks 

and green spaces were good. Satisfaction has increased on the previous year.  

How could scrutiny look at it? 

The Panel, having already undertaken in-depth scrutiny reviews into this topic could choose to 

receive a briefing report and performance information on how the department are performing in 

this area (performance monitoring).   

The Panel may wish to undertake pre decision scrutiny of the procurement of the waste 

management contract and Phase C.  

13. Topic: Street Lighting 

 
Who suggested the topic? 

The Environment and Regeneration DMT proposed that the Panel undertake pre decision 

scrutiny of the renewal of the council’s street lighting policy (pre decision scrutiny).  

 

Summary of the issue 

Resident satisfaction with street lighting remained stable at 70% satisfaction according to the 

Annual Residents Survey 2014.  

There is no statutory requirement on highway authorities to provide public lighting but the 

Council has a statutory duty to improve road safety and combat crime. Therefore street lighting 

is provided to ensure the safety of all road users, reduce the fear of crime, increase the feeling 

of security when it is dark, support the 24 hour economy by promoting economic development, 

and support social inclusion by facilitating the use of the road network at night. The majority of 

Merton’s street light meets current lighting standards. 

Page 22



 

Merton Council aims to provide street lighting that has a positive effect on the appearance, 

environment and general security of roads in the borough. The council notes that it aims to keep 

all street lighting equipment functioning properly and safely.  Merton aims to use lighting that is 

environmentally friendly, and states that it regularly inspects lighting equipment in streets and 

car parks. This is managed by the Traffic and Highways team within the Environment and 

Regeneration Department. 

 

In 2010 the Panel received a report about the street lighting service, including the development 

of a Street Lighting Policy that was adopted in 2012. The Panel also undertook pre decision 

scrutiny as part of its work over a number of years, in particular on the establishment and 

renewal of the council’s street lighting contract in January 2014 and as part of their 2014/15 

work programme they received an update on changes in technology and proposals for roll out 

across the councils street lighting stock.  

How could scrutiny look at it? 

It is suggested that the Panel undertakes pre decision scrutiny on the renewal of the council’s 

street lighting contract (pre decision scrutiny).  

14. Topic: Fox control  

 

Who suggested the topic? 

The issue of urban foxes was raised by residents.   

Summary of the issue 

The council’s policy is not to take any action on urban foxes. The council does not carry out a 

treatment or service for foxes. This policy has been in place for many years and is in line with 

neighbouring local authorities in that it follows the guidance laid out by central government. 

 

How could scrutiny look at it? 

It is suggested that the Panel responds to the individual/group that raised the topic and provide 

details on the council’s policy on foxes and pest control.  

 

15. Topic: Town Centre Regeneration 

 

Who suggested the topic? 

A resident expressed concerns about the use of space in Rayne’s Park town centre to provide a 

more attractive amenity area and to improve town centre spaces generally.  

 

Summary of the issue 

Merton’s Regeneration Programme is rooted in the LDF Core Strategy vision for the Borough 

(2011). The programme sits alongside Merton’s Economic Development Strategy, Transport for 

London LIP, and funded projects like Outer London Fund and the Mayor’s Regeneration Fund. 

Regeneration is planned and managed by the Future Merton team. At present the council 

continue to work on town centre regeneration programmes across the borough. 

How could scrutiny look at it? 

Page 23



 

The Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel has maintained an overview of the progress being 

made on the councils regeneration programme by receiving regular progress reports and 

presentations from the Future Merton Team. It is suggested that the Panel continue to receive 

progress and performance reports at six monthly intervals on the regeneration programme as a 

standing item on the work programme (performance monitoring).  

The Panel may also wish to build some flexibility into the work programme to accommodate any 

pre decision scrutiny items on proposals for specific regeneration programmes, for example, 

the Rediscover Mitcham programme or MoreMorden programme.  

16.  Topic: Planning 

 
Who suggested the topic? 

A number of topic suggestions have been received in relation to planning processes and 

planning law.  Further topic suggestions have also been received in relation to planning and 

enforcement.  

 

Summary of the issue:  

 

Planning is underpinned by the Local Plan (formerly known as the Local Development 

Framework) which encompasses a number of policies that support it including: 

 

• The Core Planning Strategy; 

• Sites and Policies Plan; 

• Sustainable Transport and Local Implementation Plan 

 

Planning is a controversial issue, and the borough’s planning committee evaluates requests for 

significant changes to properties/in the borough. Major alterations, new buildings, and changes 

in the use of buildings and land are defined as development; as is the enlargement of existing 

buildings and therefore require planning permission.  

 

In the 2014 annual resident’s survey, only 29% of residents said that they feel that planning 

services are good.  

 

How could scrutiny look at it?  

 

Members should be mindful that some of the issues raised fall within the remit of the Planning 

Committee and therefore it may not be appropriate for the Panel to undertake a Scrutiny Review 

in this area. The issues raised could be forwarded to the department to respond to. 

Alternatively, the Panel could ask the Cabinet Member for Environmental Sustainability and 

Regeneration to attend a Panel meeting to answer any questions they may have in this area.   

 

17. Topic: Public Transport  

 

Who suggested the topic? 

A number of topic suggestions were received in relation to public transport.  

 

Page 24



 

Summary of the issue: 

The council is not responsible for providing public transport but does work with TfL and other 

providers to ensure that any proposals to expand or improve public transport provision are 

commented on and opportunities for partnership working established, as well as identifying 

income streams to fund related projects. 

 

The council is also responsible for ensuring the correct infrastructure is in place for public 

transport.  

 

The council also administers a Public Transport Liaison Committee which provides a 

mechanism by which residents can raise issues about public transport with TfL and other 

providers. 

 

How could scrutiny look at it? 

 

It is suggested that the Panel refer these issues to the PTLC to respond to as they fall within the 

remit of that Committee and may be more effectively dealt with in this forum, in discussion with 

TfL.  

 

18. Topic: Waste Management 

Who suggested the topics? 

A number of suggestions have been raised that fall under the waste management and street 

scene service areas.  

 

The topics received in relation to this area are: 

 

• street cleaning; 

• wheelie bins; 

• dog waste bins 

 

These issues were raised by residents and E&R DMT. 

 

Summary of the issues that fall under waste management: 

 

Street Cleaning: 

An increase in concerns regarding litter and dirt in the streets makes this a top concern for 
residents as noted in the 2014 Annual Residents Survey.  
 
Work has been on-going in this area. The E&R Department have undertaken a Public Value 
Review of Street Cleaning. The Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel were engaged in the 
PVR from the outset and have commented on the scope of the review and received regular 
updates on progress and outcomes from the review as part of its 2012/13 and 2013/14 work 
programmes.  
 
Furthermore, as part of the Panels 2011 work programme an in-depth task group review of 
cleaner town centres was undertaken by the Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel and 

Page 25



 

updates on progress with implementation of the action plan have been received at regular 
intervals.  
 
The council has a system for reporting any issues or concerns regarding street cleaning and 

have introduced an app called, ‘Love Clean Streets’.  

 

Wheelie Bins:  

The Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel set up a task group in 2011 at the request of 

Cabinet in order to investigate the proposed use of wheeled bins for the collection of household 

waste. Members agreed a broader remit to cover all aspects of domestic waste collection in this 

review and made a number of recommendations to Cabinet in this area.  

 

The Panel also scrutinised the decision to implement a pilot wheeled bin scheme, which 

involved the provision of a weekly collection of general waste and dry recycling, as part of its 

2014/15 work programme. This pilot will cover a sample of 1200 households within the 

Lavender Fields Ward, to be carried out over a period of six months commencing in April 2015, 

in order to test the benefits or otherwise of this method of collection. The Panel agreed to 

undertake pre decision scrutiny of the outcomes of the pilot in due course to take a view as to 

where and if wheeled bins should be rolled out.  

 

The Panel also undertook an in-depth task group review of household waste management and 

the environment as part of their 2011 work programme and have subsequently received 

updates and performance managed implementation of the action plan resulting from the review.  

How could scrutiny look at it? 

It is suggested that the Panel deal with each individual topic separately in the following ways: 

Street cleaning: Undertake pre decision scrutiny of the procurement of waste management 

services at the appropriate time. 

Wheeled bins: Undertake pre decision scrutiny upon completion and analysis of the wheeled 

bins pilot that is underway.   

Dog waste bins: The Panel could receive a briefing report on the roll out and effectiveness of 

dog waste bins in Merton (scrutiny review). 

 

19. Topic: Cycle Routes 

 
Who suggested the topic? 

It has been suggested by residents that scrutiny look into cycling provision and the expansion of 

the cycle network in Merton. 

 

Summary of the issue 

Merton aims to significantly improve the conditions for cycling, which it has acknowledged 

requires significant investment and improved co-ordination across the sub region, to increase 

the cycle modal share in the borough to 6% by 2031.  

A variety of funding sources have been identified to improve cycling facilities in the borough for 

example, through the councils town centre regeneration programme. Furthermore the additional 

Page 26



 

funding received from the Mayors office will enable Merton to expand and improve its cycling 

provision.  

The Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel has reviewed cycling provision as part of its 

2012/13, 2013/14 and 2014/15 work programmes.  

How could scrutiny look at it? 

It is suggested that the Panel monitor implementation of the improvements to cycling provision 

in Merton funded by the grant received by the council from the Mayor of London (Performance 

Monitoring).  

 

20. Topic: Basement conversions/dwellings 

Who suggested the topic? 

Members of the Wimbledon Society. They suggested that scrutiny look into what policy is in 

place to manage these developments and to consider the impact of these developments, for 

example, flood risk, effects on nearby houses of construction process etc.  

How could scrutiny look at it? 

Members may wish to refer this issue to the Planning Committee to consider and respond to 

(referral).  

 

21. Topic: Converting commercial buildings to residential properties 

Who suggested the topic? 

Members of the Wimbledon Society.  

Summary of the issue 

It was suggested that the Panel loo into recent legislation that allows the conversion of 

commercial properties into residential properties and the negative impact on small businesses if 

this goes ahead. The Panel received a presentation as part of its 2014/15 work programme on 

government legislation to enable the development of commercial into residential properties and 

considered local policy and the approach to be taken by the council on this.  

How could scrutiny look at it? 

It s suggested that the Panel does not review this item again as any applications for conversion 

would be considered by officers and the Planning Committee, if appropriate (referral). 

22. Topic: Climate Change 

Who suggested the topic? 

Members of the Wimbledon Society. 

 

Summary of the issue 

Question raised about how the council are addressing climate change. The Panel established a 

task group on Climate Change and the Green Deal as part of its 2013/14 work programme. The 

Panel have subsequently received updates on the delivery of the recommendations resulting 

from the review. 

How could scrutiny look at it? 

Page 27



 

It is proposed that the Panel continue to maintain an overview of the delivery of the action plan 

outlining how the agreed recommendations will be delivered (performance monitoring).  

23. Topic: Community Facilities 

Who suggested the topic? 

Members of the Wimbledon Society. 

 

Summary of the issue 

A resident raise the topic of how the council can continue to provide adequate community 

services and facilities, such as educational, cultural and community use, that add to the 

wellbeing of the community and quality of life in the borough.  Members of the Wimbledon 

Society also queried the possible construction of a community centre in Wimbledon to replace 

the one that was in place on Drake Road.  

How could scrutiny look at it? 

Members may wish to receive a briefing report at a future meeting on how the council is 

continuing to provide important community facilities and services in times of austerity and what 

regeneration proposals are in place that supports the future development of these cultural, 

leisure and community facilities across the borough (briefing report).  

24.  Topic: Community Transport 

Who suggested the topic? 

A councillor.  

 

Summary of the issue 

Merton Community Transport (MCT) is a not for profit charity which has been providing 

transport solutions for the community in and around the London Borough of Merton since the 

year 2000. The service is open to any individual and their carer in the borough of Merton who 

joins the service and has mobility need. 

How could scrutiny look at it? 

Members may wish to receive a briefing report on the delivery of community transport services 

and any proposals for future changes or developments to the service. 

 

25. Topic: Creating a tourist industry in Merton 

Who suggested the topic? 

Cabinet Member.  

How could scrutiny look at it? 

Members may wish to undertake a review of the tourist industry in Merton by receiving a 

presentation from officers (briefing report) or establish a task group to explore models and 

options for creating a tourist industry in Merton.  

 

26. Topic: Economic Development and Public Health – The Health and Wellbeing 

Strategy 

 

Who suggested the topic? 

Page 28



 

The Director of Public Health. 

How could scrutiny look at it? 

The public health functions that the NHS was previously responsible for have been transferred 

to local authorities. A public health team has been established and a Director of Public Health 

appointed. The council now work more closely in partnership with the support of Merton Clinical 

Commissioning Group, which works with local health practitioners including GPs and nurses.  

The councils Health and Wellbeing Strategy seeks to reduce the gap in life expectancy of 

residents between the East and the West of the borough.  

How could scrutiny look at it? 

It is proposed by the Director of Public Health that the Panel receive a briefing on the delivery of 

the health and well being strategy in relation to the areas that fall within the Panels remit. It is 

also proposed that the Panel request an overview of how the Environment and Regeneration 

and Community and Housing Departments are making health a focus when developing policies 

and programmes of work to ensure that they are addressing current and potential health 

inequalities. 

 

 

 

Page 29



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



 

 

Appendix 3 
 
Selecting a Scrutiny Topic – criteria used at the workshop on 19 May 2015 
 
The purpose of the workshop is to identify priority issues for consideration as agenda 
items or in-depth reviews by the Scrutiny Panels and the Commission. The final 
decision on this will then be made by the Panels/Commission at their first meetings. 
 
All the issues that have been suggested to date by councillors, officers, partner 
organisations and residents are outlined in the supporting papers.  
 
Further suggestions may emerge from discussion at the workshop. 
 
Points to consider when selecting a topic: 
 
o Is the issue strategic, significant and specific? 
 
o Is it an area of underperformance? 
 
o Will the scrutiny activity add value to the Council’s and/or its partners’ overall 

performance? 
 
o Is it likely to lead to effective, tangible outcomes? 
 
o Is it an issue of community concern and will it engage the public? 
 
o Does this issue have a potential impact for one or more section(s) of the 

population? 
 
o Will this work duplicate other work already underway, planned or done recently? 
 
o Is it an issue of concern to partners and stakeholders? 

 
o Are there adequate resources available to do the activity well? 

Page 31



 

 
Appendix 4 

Notes from discussion of topics relating to the remit of the Sustainable Communities 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel,  
Scrutiny Topic Selection Workshop 19 May 2015 
 

Attendees: 

 
Present: Councillor Abigail Jones, (Chair), Councillor Stan Anderson, Councillor Daniel Holden 
(substitute). Councillor Caroline Cooper-Marbiah (Cabinet member for Adult Social Care and 
Health) 
 
Also present: Simon Williams Director of Community and Housing, Kay Eilbert, Director of 
Public Health, Chris Lee, Director of Environment and Regeneration and Stella Akintan, Scrutiny 
Officer. 
 

The Chair said in developing the work programme members may wish to make some changes, 
to ensure that scrutiny continues to add value and responds to the concerns of the public. Panel 
members agreed that appointing champions is one approach that can help to achieve this aim.  
The Chair also said the annual scrutiny survey highlighted that levels of satisfaction have 
decreased in some areas including Performance Management. The panel members agreed that 
performance management could be scrutinised more effectively if it was looked at towards the 
beginning of the agenda with an exception report providing context on the indicators.  

Dr Eilbert highlighted that improving health outcomes falls within the remit of this panel. There 
was some discussion about how to embed health considerations across all the scrutiny panels. 
One possibility included all reports to include a summary on how the work links to the health 
and wellbeing strategy and a summary of the health impact. Councillor Southgate suggested 
that the Commission as the overarching scrutiny body should lead on embedding health across 
all panels. Dr Eilbert and Councillor Southgate agreed to hold a separate discussion on this 
issue. 

 Topic Decision 

1. Highways maintenance – contract 
renewal 

The contract is due for renewal in 
September 2017. A report can go to the 
Panel around March/April 2016 or 
June/July 2016. 

2. Morden Leisure Centre To be included in the work programme 

3. Commercial Services and 
opportunities to maximise 
resources 

Panel to receive a briefing at June 
meeting. 

4. Housing Supply This topic to be considered as part of the 
task group review 

5. Climate Change To monitor the implementation of the 
task group recommendations 

6. Merton Adult Education To be included in work programme as 
pre-decision scrutiny. The contract for 
MAE will be awarded in the autumn and 
there will also be a decision on the 

Page 32



 

location. Scrutiny officer to follow up on 
timescales. 

7. Monitoring of stock transfer to 
CHMP and regeneration 
programme 

Panel to receive a briefing in June 

8. Shared Services Department to provide a briefing after the 
shared services task group has reported 
in the autumn. 

9. Adult Skills and Employability 
Task Group 

To monitor the implementation of the 
task group recommendations 

10. Public Toilets To be included in work programme. 
There is concern that businesses are not 
advertising their membership of the 
community toilet scheme. Panel could 
engage residents to do some mystery 
shopping on this issue. 

11. 20 mph Zones/Limits Panel members decided not to include 
this issue in the work programme 

12. Creation and maintenance of 
green spaces 

This can be looked at as part of Phase C 
regeneration programme, which includes 
parks, grounds, maintenance and waste. 
Scrutiny Officer to liaise with Department 
over timescales 

13. Street Lighting This topic will appear on the Forward 
Plan and the Panel can decide if further 
scrutiny is required. 

14. Fox control Panel members decided not to include 
this issue in the work programme 

15. Town Centre Regeneration This Topic will be included in work 
programme 

16. Planning Panel members decided not to include 
this issue in the work programme 

17. Public Transport Topic to be referred to the Public 
Transport Liaison Committee 

18. Waste Management Panel to consider the results of the 
wheelie bin pilot as pre-decision scrutiny. 

19. Cycle Routes To be included in the work programme. 
The council has received ‘quiet ways’ 
funding from the Mayor’s office. A 
briefing will go to the Panel once the 
money has been received. 

20. Basement conversions and 
dwellings 

Panel members decided not to include 
this issue in the work programme 

21. Converting commercial buildings 
to residential properties 

Panel can receive an update on the 
number of conversions if required. 

Page 33



 

22 Climate Change This topic was considered in a recent 
task group 

23. Community Facilities Panel members decided not to include 
this issue in the work programme 

24. Community Transport Panel members decided not to include 
this issue in the work programme 

25. Creating a Tourist Industry in 
Merton 

Panel members would like a briefing on 
this issue. It could be suitable for a task 
group review as it involves looking at 
how to attract more investment into the 
borough.  

26. Economic Development and 
Public Health 

To be considered as part of the work of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Commission. 

 

 

The Chair thanked Panel members and officers for attending and said the work programme 
would be flexible and respond to issues as they arise. 

The workshop finished at 8.15pm 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34



 

Appendix 5 

Forward Plan items relating to the remit of the Sustainable Communities Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel:  

None.  

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 18 March 2015
	8 Agreeing the Work Programme 2015/16

